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used in t he  letter was not perhaps the most gentle in 

the world, and far from it; but in the letter he explained 

to you the purpose of h i s  attitudo in the  l e t t o r  was to 

scare her nore, to make her more a f ra id  of hin than she 

was of Ben Chavis: t h a t  she had previousll~ state2 to him 

that she was scared of Den Chavis and he felt t h a t  was 

t h e  only wway he was going to he able to get to her, to 

get her to tell what she knew. If t h a t  is not asking 

for the truth, I don't knov w3at is. 

9 . The constant reference by the sumnation of de- 

' t  fense counsel to Allen Hall and Jerone Mitchell being in 

'cherry ilospital up there, yo:' know that mental hospital .  

F k l l ,  of course, prior to going to Cherry IIospital  as 

they both testified they both had been charged w i t h  serious 

fe lonies ,  and they v e n t  to Cherry Fospital upon advice 

of their legal counsel;and the tray u3e have it s e t  up i n  

t h i s  S t a t e  i n  serious felony caees,a defenr7ant can be 

4 sent to Cherry tlospital for  a pretrial diagnostic study 
a 

to see if he is co:2ppetent to stand t r i a l .  Both w e r e  con- 

petcnt ,  found competent to stand t r i a l  and did stand 
- _. 

t r i a l  and received their.  sentence:and yet they would 

have you t o  t h i n k  you j u s t  can't believe them because 

they wore in Cherry l lospital  for 50 days. J u s t  because 

a person has gone to Cherry Hospital doesn't mean he ia 



. You have seen the medical supplies that were at '2empletr.n'~ 

house. They t e l l  you Eric Junious has smashsd h i s  f inger 

in a door and they had to send him to t<e hospital when 

they had medical supplies at Temploton's house. Did you 

hear anything about t hem having an xray machine a t  Temple- 

. ton's house? If sor~&ody smashes a finger in the door, 

aren't you going to send+them to the hospital to see if 

the i r  finger is busted? 'ks. Templeton w a s  treating h i m ,  
. . 

and s5e was a registered nurse and knew they had to go to 

the hospita l  to treat it, to get  it xrayed. 
* 

On the other hand, they say, "Well why send 

SJ Junious, Little Mouse, why send h i m  to the hospital  

and not send the rest of them?" 

You know why. A busted finger is an ordinary 

accident. If you go into energency roan to get an Xray 

of a b~ls ted  finger, you are not going to have a doctor 

saying, "Well, how did you husk it?" Except to say I 

busted it in the door, it is an everyday ac t ion  that 

occurrs to anybody. Nhy diZnVt they send the others to 

the hospital? Why did they have the medical supplies 

there? They knew that if sonebocly got shot and was 

- sent to the emergency room of the hospital w i t h  a gun- 

shot wound, t h a t  many, mahy questions would be asked 

and that they would he jeopardizing thmsclvcs at tha t  

poin t .  T h a t  is vrhhy they weren't sent to the hospital 



and why ERic Juniolls was. 

. Now another contention of the defense.  Bow 

possibly could a l l  of the things be done t3a t  Ilall testi- 

fied to between t3e tine t h a t  the officer was shot  at 5th . 

and ilun on Saturday night  and between the burning of M i l r e ' s  

Grocery Store? Between these two places how could All 

of tho t h i n g s  have occurred Chat Allen Hall testified to 

in that short per!.ocl of t i m e ?  hnd they  have told you 

that it is inpossible t h a t  a l l  of those things could 

have occurred.' Let's go back and determine what occurred. 

You recall t h a t  Allen lIall test i f ied that they 
.-,.. C - 

' w e r e  shooting at police officers up in this area and that 

he and Chavis and Willie Earl Vereen had retreated to an 

area behind'the barricades, t h e  pipes over here; that 
, . 

they returned f i r e  toward the policemen. They then ran 
-. 

back to the cl~urch. Well, before I go i n t o  those de- 

t a i l s  l e t  ma mention t%is to you. Also i n  reference to 
. . " .. 

the time interval thing, they have referred to the 

testimony of Sarg. Bloomer urha t e s t i f i d  for  the S t a t e  
. , 

in this case and sa id  that Satg. B l o o m e r  said that htey 
. , . , 

went straijht  as soon as Det. Genes got s h o t ,  t h a t  they 

went  straight from here around to 6th and Ann and saw the 

fire at Hike's. Eut you will recall that Dct. Bloomer, 

Snrg.lJloomer, testified they %rere here for sone 5 or 10 

Lw minutes before they  w e n t  over there,  Imt recal l  h i s  testi-  



many a l i t t l e  b i t  furh&er. ??hat d i d  he say when they got in- 

to this area here? &at did they say as to what t\ey 

observed as he and Det. brawn . . started walkinq up Ann 

- .  

ment testified that the tlilnintJton Fire Department received 

the atam at 10:10. They would'get here about 10;15 ,  - 

I .  . . . . receive gunfir& and back out 10~20 or 10:25. So it was 

about 10:29 or 10:25 that  Sarg. Bloomer or Det. Brown d 

c m e  i n t o  this area and what tine 613 Sarg. Genes get 

DL,- . shot? . . 

You recall +?at he and the others testified 

about 9:45. So it \ws between 0:45 and 10:20 or 10:25 

which is some 35  or 40 minutes from the t ine Det. Bloomer - 
Excuse me. Sarg. Bloomer and Det. Bra-m w e r e  here and 

then came i n t o  the area of ?like's here on Ann Street. 

3ut hhe more crucial matter is tha t  from 9 :45 

to 10:I.O is 2 5  minutes-that l ial l  and Chavis anrT these 

. , other defendants had to go back to make preparations 
6 .  

from ?lil:e 's and to go over and firebomb. 

ll!~at d i d  Hal l  t e s t i f y  to? H a l l  test if ied that  

they raq back to the church, that tJarvin P a t r i c k  took 

his qun away fron h i m :  that he and Chavis  then went right 

over to Templeton's house; that ~ h n v i s  gave him another 



They went straight back to the churcl and there 

Chavis made h i s  speach, sa id ,  "We are going to burn 

are going to shoot  at police officers and 

firenen #hen they come i n t o  t h e  area and tend ths f i re .  

And Ann Slrephard stands up, says, "We are going 

to have to show thcsc crackess we are going to - mean 

How long does that take? Not Ion;. Re and 

Chavis come t o - 6 t h  and Nun to look for police; go right 
. . 

back to the church. How lonq? N o t  long. - 7  

Then they get the group, immediately get the 

3 group, go down an a l l e y  between the church and the par- - *.*- 
sonagp: hand out f ireboml)s h a ~ : ~  at t!ie air conditioning 

unit; come straight over here- Hal:, Chavis , Vereen 

ilnc Corbett cross the street here to ?like's, 

to 5th Street where they have this brief encounter with 

Father Jones, back over here to get the firebonbs, back 

over here to. tirsov the firebombs and then back to t3e 

. cl~usch, I Ia l l  and Ckavis. 

The other defendants scatter in posikion in 

t h i s  area. . SOW a l l  of' that can be easily done in 25 

Easily. There is no questiori in my mind about 

it. 

yours. 

Th e State's mind; and I am sure there is none in 

Those th ings  - 25 minutes is a long t i m e .  You 

can do a l o t  of things in 25 minutes. Y e t  the defense 



. . 

would have you believe those tiqrjs couldn't be done in 

It didn't take 10 minutes to have the encounter 

with P a t k r  Jones. It couldn't have taken more than 3 

or 4 minutes, if that long. Few lonq does it take to 
t throw firebonbs? You can throw them in a couple of - ,  

minutes. You are not  going to stand there, say, "iIere 

Here is another firebamb." You are not 

going to stand there waiting for the police t o  come by 

and see you throwing firebombs. You are going to throtf 
. , 

- .  . . them as fist' as you can. So the  tine internal is no 

problem as the defense would have you believe. 
I ,  

LF> Now the defense asked you why dizn't the State . 

put on certain other evidence. Iay didn't the Sta te  put 

on that 'evidence? A 1 1  r igh t .  Plrst of a l l ,  they asked 
. . 

and asked you why didn't the State put on t h e  driver 

of t ha t  white van if they want out to' F i e l d s  and if they 

. w e n t  t o  get gasol ine .  k?hy didn't - an8 you w i l l  recall 
- .  - 

the i r  exact words. Why didn't they put Johnn*: Ro?~inoon 

on the stand? During the time t h a t  Yr .  Oleiss and Allen 

Hall and Mrs.. Decker were.test i fy ing on this stand, d i d  . 
. . I .  

you ever hear them cal l  h i m  Jolrnny Robinson? It was 

always John Robinson. Does that tone of familiarity, 

Johnny Robinson, t h a t  was used by the defense  counsel, 

does t ha t  give you a clue as to why John Robinson 8idn1t 

t e s t i f y  on t h i s  stand? It certainly should. 



. . 

Then they go on to ask , where . is Ila11's cousin 

and his aunt and his uncle? $ 2 1 ~  didn't they testofu 

for the State of 1Iort5 Carolina? That he ha& been arounil . , 

there eat ing  Kentucky Fried  Chicken and t h a t  he ahd had 

a drink. ?Io\r is t5at  relevant to t h i s  case. We could 

have put on evidence liek that for a year an3 never 

finished. F?hy is the  State going . . to put on that kin2 of 

evidence?and then 

And then I I r .  llsrmon g e t s  up here and tells you, 
:- . . . 

"t?ell the aunt qnd uncle, Uncle Charles and Aunt  Cel- 

estine Graham are a figment of i lal l 's  hka'~ination." It 6 

, . , 

% .  - must b e a figment of Ann Shephard's imagination, t o o ,  

because she spent the night there. H o w  would their testi- 

m n y  be relevant? Why not Sandra Marshall? thy not p ~ t  I 

her on the stand an8 t e s t i f y ?  Ifl~at difference does Mat 
- 

make? You'd sit: there and laugh at me. Ivllat we nfen 
. . 

Is tastinony that is relevant, and that is what the 

Sta te  has put before you. That i s  a l l  the State has 

put on and probably some of that you thought "sasngt 

that relev-': 2 .  
. . 

"Where were tho other people in the church of 

all those other poople?l1 ir. ~lunevol asks  you. "t.W 

didn't they bring them in here to testify?" Ile brought 

one to testify an;! you saw hovr he testified. Re put 

G-- -.-DEnjanin Wonce up on the stand and w h a t  d i d  Benjamin 
, ,'. , 



Wonce do but tell one lie after the other? DO you think .. 
I an going t o  bring those people up here an4 have t?jm . 

testify for the State of N o r t h  Carolina and knbw they 

. . are going to l ie? I am not going to do that. If they 

want to do it, fine: but I am not. He put up a case for 

Ann Shcp5ard. Why didn't he put them up here? Why 

didn't he c a l l  then up here and gut them on the witnrss 

stancl? 

- S l R ,  HUNEVOL: Objection. _. - - .  
C 
I I 

TIE COURT: Objection sustained, 

FIR. HUNZVOL: Xequest instructions. . . 

TIE COURT: I?emhers of the jury, you will n o t  . . 

consider that statement of the Solicitor. 

SOL. SPROUD Continues: P ? e l l  the po in t  is he 

did.... (qyfd- do, 

Then the defense goes on to contend t hn t  t he  

.: . 
. State spent an hour and €I witnesses justifying the killing 

of Steve Corbctt. .  :Tell I dont t w a n t  to just i fy  anybody's 

. - k i l l i n g .  They would have you to believe that t h a t  evi- 

dence was put up there s t r i c t l y  to  inflame you against  

. - ,  these defendants, to inflame your mind and to defend 

the actions of Jacky Shaw. ?fell I am sure you are con- 

vinced j u s t  like I am that Jacky Shatr didn't need to 

defend h i s  actions at a l l .  And that wasn't the purpose 



'. 
And then 1%. Harmon comes up here and says, ' \ 

'Well why? l a y  did  they put on that? ?*at is the 

relevancy of that? Jacky Shaw killing Steve Corbett? 

I j us t  can't unaerstand why they 216 it." - 
I .  . . 

You can understand it because' I am going to 

tel l  you why right Am. That is one of the strangest . ,  
- .  . > 

bi ts  of evidence that the State put on concerninq the 

conspiracy to assault emergency personnel at Mike's 

.. Grocery Store.  Where was Stever Corbett? He was between 

the third ahd f o u r t h  hoase r i g h t  there where they had- . . .  "- . . 
left him to be a part of the ambush on police officers 

" v  , ,-- , . 
L 

and f i r e ~ e n  when they came to put out the fire.  And . .  ... - r. 

Where was Jacky Shaw? Jacky Shaw was on tho porch of the 
" .  -. I -. 

third house.. !?hat did Jacky Shaw see? He heard a c l i c k  

first and. then he saw a barrel, shotgun barrel, po in t ing  
. . 

, . . , * .  . . . . .  . . . . .  
. & ,  ,. . . . , ~ . : . . . . . .  

- u p  at him. - .  . ; . . . . - .  . . 
. J  . . .  

, .  . ,  
. . . . -  . . . . .  . . .-. * 

. . . . . . .  . . 
. .  , 

, -  ..\.- . . .  , . . . . . .  . . . . ,- 
. . , .  . .~*'~'Now if that  evidence is not relevant to a con- 

. . . ?. . 
, . spiracy to assault emergency personnel I don't know 

. C what evidence is. Because that shows more clearly than . - .. 
any otchr piece of evidence t h a t  tho State put up here ,. - . . , . 
that the reaidn stcvc Corbett and these defendants were 

out there were to k i l l  police officers and f,iremen, 

and that is exactly what Steve Corbett t r i e d  to do. 

You recall that  A l l e n  Hall t e s t i f i ed  that Steve 

&, . '  Carhett went wit h i m  with t h a t  shotgun down to 5th and 



. . 
Nun. You recall that  ha was back there when firebom5s 

were  handed out and he ccae..with a group over to 6th 

r Street. You recall  that  Corbett was the one t5at was 

L preparing to shoot Pathor  ones across the Street and. 
Mr. T. D. Love and was aiming the gun. You k r i l l  recall  

. . 
that  Steve ~orbet t '  w a s '  last- seen in this area w h x e  he 

, 

was when he was k i l l e d  because he had t r i ed  to kill a 

police officer. 

ElR. HtTqEVOL: If your Ronor please, we object I 

- to any referenct bo the defendants conspiring 

w i t h  Steve Corbett. X w i l l  refer the Court 
I .  

to the hill of i n d i c t ~ e n t .  We move to s t r i k e  

t h a t .  

THE COURT : Motion sus taincd. 

E.IR. liU:!EVOL: Your Honor, the  bill of indictmant 
. - 

says "with others" and names sone. 
. . 

* .  

TEE COURT: Objection sustained, 

- FIR. ElUlJ3;VOL: ?love for ins truc t ions ,  

THE COURT: :v?exbers of the jury, you w i l l  not 

consider any reference to Steve Corbctt. . , .  - - .  
SOL. STROUD Continues: Then you will r2call 

t h a t  Mr. Hunevol gets up here and says, "What does the 
' 

killing of Stever Corbett by Jacky Shaw have to 30 with . . 
, ,  , 

my client, Ann Shcphard?" 

Well if h i s  client, Ann Shephard,hadn't*gotten 

up r ight  after Chavis s a i d ,  "We arc going to go over and 



. .  
, 

burn !bike's, and we are going to get  into position to 

.' shoat the police officers and firemen when we come there. n 

If h i s  c l i e n t  had not stood up right after Chavis and - 
said, " y e s ,  w h a t  you arc doing is r igh t .  We are going 

to have to show these crackers we mean then 
, 

home of the people might not have gone out w i t h  Chavis 

- .  and these people, Stever Corbett, might be alive tozay. 

That is what she's got to do w i t h  it. She inci ted and 
. . 

. encouraged others to go out and do it. Don't youtbink 
, . 

they paid a t t en t ion  to whht she did? Sure they did. 

: That is the relevancy to Ann Shephard. It is relevant 
. , 

. to- everyone of these defendants,- 

Then the defense contends "Now could Officer 

Chipps identify - how could he be standing at thin corner 

and iaent i fy  the defendant Chavis on the porch of the 

church and n o t  i den t i fy  the other people around he+@ 

that w e r e  there w i t h  guns, the  young teenagers there 

with guns on that Saturday morning when they were sitting 

out or picking up Sarricades." You will recall Officer 

Chippe testimony t h a t  when he cane up i n t o  this area 
.. - 

he saw young men standing out here, teenagers w i t h  guns; 

that he was w i t h  4 or 5 other officers in uiiform at that 

time; t h a t  he looked down toward the area of the church 

and there he saw the defendant Chavis pushing two men 

into the front door of the c!~urch and just as he was 



" .  
! doing it, the defendant Chavis looked down at the corner 

right  at him. 
1 .  . 

Now they askw'.?hy could Officer Chipps identify 

- him and none of these people down here?" Well maybe he 

i. 'hadn't seen any of these other people down here before. 
I ' 

But he testified t h a t  he had seen the defendant Chavis 
t 

before because other officers had pointed him out to * 
him. And he knew what the defendant Chavis looked like, 

and when the  defenSant looked right at aim he saw'his 
4 

: * I .. , face. * . - - 
1 .  

d 
L 

"Wsy couldn't he i d e n t i f y  fhe other two men 

3 that  were up there?" We11 there  is no evidence that they 
. . '..'. .I 

looked at hin'sa that he could see then full facc. You 

are convinced 1 an sure that that is a good identification 

by 0if icer Chipps. 
. . 

.- 
i .. And then blr. FXunevol would cone up here and say 

to you, "If you believe the State's case and the testi- 

mony of Allen Fiall and Jerome I.litcbel1 and E r i c  Junious, 

then'you must believe that  the defendants Chavis is 

one of the most vicious and ruthless men that  ever set 

, foot in this e a r t h .  3ut t hen  he goes on to say t h a t  it 

- i s  hard for ne to say that because Chipps test i f ied  on 

that SAturtlay morning there he was ushering two ncn - 
and ushering was th word - ushering tvlo men i n t o  tho 

church as if for church services. RHow could a mean, 
'%' . 



.- .- 
vicicus ruthless man put young children ottt here w i t h  . " 

guns and leave then Mere and push two adult men i n t o  the 

church and not  go to the  ride of tbese young racn?" 

Now that is ruthless ..and t h a t  is vicious. 

Then they asked the question, 'Well if these 
9 - 

police were there, why didn't these young men shoot 

at the police?" Well they w e r e  right across the corrler 

froa each athcr. Do you any young mnn in h i s  right 

mind who is going to stay there in broad open daylight 
. , 

and point a gun at a police officer, a trained police 
. . 

. . 
officer and try to shoot h i m ?  :lot many young boys are 

".going to do that, end.they say yet, "Well t h e  State 

would have you believe they shot at everyone else, trhy 

d i d n ' t  they shoot at the police officers? "Ihy ditlnln't 

they do that?" Because they *$ere youkg boys. It was 

daytime. They had no cover. The shooting was at n i g h t  

when they coald get behind buildings an4 hetween build- 

i n g s ,  take cover and be hidden and not he harmed. 

THE COURT; Elembers of the jury, we'll take about 

a 10 minute recess. 
.. . 

('The Court recessed from 11:15 A I until 
. .  , 

, 1 1 ~ 3 0  A M.) ' 
. . -  . _ - ., .-2 

SOL. STROUD Continues: Ladies and gentlemen, 
. . 

l e t  me finish with the contentions. ~ o x t  you will recall 

that as hest they cotrld they did everything within t h e i r  .. . .  
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pm~et  to break down and to tear down the testicony of 

Eric Junious, rlotor rouse. And they asked him such ques- 

t i o n s  as "Have you ever lied to your grandmother?'' And 

he said, "Yes. " "Have you ever stolen anything?" And 

he said, "~es." "How nany of us - I an going to speak 

for myself and not you. I cannot say t h a t  I have never 

lie2 to a grandparent or to a teacher in order t o  stay 

O u t  of trouble, And I can't say that I have; never stolen 

anything because when I was a l i t t l e  boy I used to go 

through my mama's pocketbook to get  out the loose change. 

We have a l l  done that. But I retract that .  We know 

,. .that because a 13 year old boy lies to h i s  grandmother 

and because a 13 year old Soy steals  something t h a t  . 

that does not mean he cannot be a credible and heliev- 

able witness. 

. . lloti renelnhcr j u s t  as we have talk& about in 

the jury selection staye, you have got to apply standards 
. . 

t h a t  yo11 use in everyday life to determine how much 

weight you are going to p u t  i n t o  a witness's testimony. 

And you know, j u s t  as the State knows, t h a t  the Sta te  
I . . 

could n o t  have put a more credible witness than Eric 

Junious on that witness  stand. If t h a t  boy wasn't 

telling the truth, the truth has never been told. 

Then they quoation him ahout being in t ra in ing  

ci- school and t r y  to leave you with tha impression t ! ~ e t  Eric 



Junious got out of training school because the State  

made a deal w i t h  ?kin to t e s t i f y  and yet E r i c  Junious told 

. you i ron  this witness stand,  and when Xr. Brown and I 

first went up there t o  see him in training school that 

he had already received n o t i c e  that  he was getting out . . 

of training school in two weeks. Y e t  the implication . . 

of the deal, ojain, the State is dealinq to win a case. 

And you know that is n o t  true. 

And they asked h i m  what he was in training school 

for.and Eric ssls arned robbery. And thon they get up 

here and say, 'Eere he is, a little 13 yeat old boy, 
. . . -- > 

DL 4e robbing . a . grovm mn. Can you believe h i s  testimony?" 

Well I j u s t  w i s h  you knew the circumstances under wl~ich 
.. .. : 

. E r i c  Junious was charged w i t h  and sent  to traininn school 
. +  - - .a 

for robl~ery. But I can't t c l l  you the circumstances 
. - 

because he woulrln't t c l l  you from the witness stand, 

and I can't argue what hasn't been put i n t o  evidence. 

- But you don't  know the circunstances of t h a t  rob5ery. 

yo;'dani't kn& what kind of an al leged kn i fe  he had and 
. -, 

where he got it from. You don't know who t h e  grovm man 

was that  he robbsd. You .don't know how much money or 

. . change he got when he d i d  it. You don't know f$ltllo was 

wit11 him. All you know is t h a t  he was sent to training 

school for armecl robbery, and I w i s h  I could tell you. 
\ 

And t h e  reason Eric didn't want to t e l l  you is because 



he was afraid  you wonid laugh at him just as I d i d  when 
s 

he t o l d  me. .. , 
.-I . . . 

- MR. FEYGUSCIN: Objection. 

tXR. WHEVOS: Objection. 

THE CO'JRT: Sustained as to laughing at h i m .  
* * 

BOL. STROUD ~ a n t i n ~ ~ e s :  Y e t  what does E r i c  say? . 
, - , .  .. , .. " 

Ile says each t i m e  he's been in court he's 'told t!le t ~ ~ t h :  

that w3en he went to court.ior arme3 robbery t h a t  he wasn't 

arrested. They just came by and gave him a sumons to 
. - 

be in court on a certain day. So he goes to court, 

Juvenile Court, and the Judge asks h i m ,  7lhat did  you do, 
. . 

0 ' . E r i c ? "  And Eric tolls h i m ,  t e l l s  the truth, knowing 
- k ,  , 

t h a t  it in going to p e t  him in trouble. He ha3 been in 

court before, Juvenile Cour t ,  for breaking and entering 

I!e said he told the t r u t h  then, and he 

was put on probation; t 5 a t  he is no longer on probation. 

Y c t  they tried to imppl w i t h  you t!lat be is thcoratically 

under supervision of the lcJuvenile Court until he is 18 

and t h a t  is why he is testifying because we put the 
, - pressure on h i m  to testify. And you know that is not  

- .. . . . . ' true .  nid' he look l i k e  he was under pressure he. 

was up here testifying? , Did . .  he look l i k e  he was scared 

of me or W. C. Drwvm or anybody else? Out of the mouths 
.. a 

of babes cor!cs the truth. . . And I contend t h a t  t ha t  is 

exactly what E r i c  ~knious is. Ile hasn't yet learned, 
_ '  . , . .  
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. . 

even though he has been on the s treet  and he may he 

street wise, he hasnt t yet learned that  when you c o m e  

- in to  court sometimes you are going to have to t e l l  a 

. @ l i e  like we adults have because we have a l l  seen adults  

get up on t h i s  witness stand and l i e .  
C 

Eric is probably the m o s t  believable witness *- 

that could ever he put on a witness stand. 

And then the defense,  througl~ Mr. Ferguson, 
*. 

questions Eric in order to st~ow you that E r i c  is seeing - .. - .  ' ,  
, .. 

a psychiatrist because of h i s  problem ahout lying and 
- - .' . * . stealing, and so Mr. Ferguson a s k s ,  "Do you see a doctor 

. . regularly?" - - 

"How often?" 

"Once a month. " 
. 

"!-here is h i s  office located?" 

"17th street." 

"When you go to your doctor does he give you 

any shot or pills??try?ng to leave the impres- 

. , . .  . sion that  it tmuld be a psychiatrist. 
8 ' . _  

"No, sir ." 

. . ,  . . "When you go to the doctor does he t a l k  to you 
. .. 

. .. . . a Lot?" 

":lo, sir.  a# 

"Well after you have gone to the doctor, does 



your grandmother t a l k  with him a lot?. 

"3 don't know. w . . 

"Do you know what a psychiatrist is?" 

alJo. " 

"Are you in q a ~ l  physical health?" 

" Y e s  . .. . 
. . 

*Do you play organized football?" . . 
. . . -  . 

. . . . 

.- . .. . 'Yes." Trying to show ha couldn't be going tllerc 
. , 

. , I % . . . . 

. for physlcal reasons, and the3 the question. . . 
' Yfl~en is the las t  time you went to the doctor?* . . 

, . -  , . 
-  he '3rd of last  month. " . v . . -- 

. . . . .-- . -  ' ~ n d  w h a t  d i d  you and the doctor talk about?" 

d. . . . .  
A "My broken arm. I* 

-. And d i d  you notice after tha t  that Mr. Ferguson . . .. - 
didn't as]: anymoee questions for about 5 ninutes because 

. ? 

he wanted so desperately ifo you to believe t h a t  E r i c  

~unious was see ing a psychiatrist. B u t  Eric in h i s  obm 

innocent way comes up here and answers the questions, 

not knowing what $Ire Ferguson is trying to lead up to, 
. ~ 

. . 
not understanding what those questions are about, and he 

. tells the t r u t h  and E l r .  Ferguson doesn't l i k e  it. 

Then Mr. Ferguson gets up here and argues to 

you that you should not believe what E r i c  Junious says. 

YOU should not believe h i m .  He is an armed robber. He 

l i es  to his grandnother. :Ie steals. You should not GI. 
believe it. 



, , .  

And then, on t h e  other hand, Mr. F e r ~ s o n  t e l l s  
. . . - 

you, well, you know implieclly , even if you do believe 

h i m  he didn't test i fy  to-mch. Xhat he t e s t i f i e d  was 

about Saturday night and his testimony was in dlrect 

rebuttal to w 3 a t  t h a t  defendant Ann Shephard had said 

l;e &?nut renenber being there Thursday. Been there 

Friday night .  Been there Sunday. Yet they say he didn'  t .. 

. . . t e s t i f y  to much. If they wanted to hear more why didn't 

they ask him questions? Did t%y? They didn't ask him 
. 

F-Jb. any questions ahout Friday night. You dirln't hear 14r. 

Ferguson ask hirn one question about what he testified to. 

17014 let's take Hall, Hitchell and Junious to- 

get?er.  Clearing the training schools and the prison 
. , . 

camps to get witnesses to cone in here to testify to 

sometlling wc t o l d  t % e m  to testify to. 

First of a l l ,  is there some pri:lciplc of human 

behavior that says t ha t  a criminal cannot tell the truth? 

nave you ever heard of such a principle? That a criminal 

can't toll the truth? If that were true we wouldn't 

- 

- 

have so many criminal cases because many criminal  cases 

are solved by confessions , . j u s t  as Allen l i a l l ! s  case 

was and j u s t  a s  Jerone qitchell'c, case was. They told 
. . 

v~hat' they dicl and . . then cane to court and t o l d  what 



they did  and what a t h m s  did. Contrary to popular belief 

you don' t  g e t  State's witnesses for this type of case 

f r o m  a monastary or a convent. 

Flow I am not holding H a l l  and ?etchell  and 

even E r i c  Junious,  1 an not holding then out as saints 

or angels, but I am holding them out as believable w i t -  
? 
. . 
.. . . . ncsses. Why? H a l l  and 14itcfiell wouldn't be crininalz: 

, if they have t o l d  the truth on t!hemselves. The same 

. - -  thing with Eric Juniaus. He is not consid~red a criminal 
I: . 

- - because he was in Juvenile Court, Be is not yet 16. 

' .  ' He ~ouldn't have been sent to  training school i f  he - 
3 . .hadn't t o l d  the truth on themselves, a l l  three of t h e m  
- -.--c 

did .  If they are going to t e l l  the truth on themselves, 

. is there s c m e  reason they won't get up here and t e l l  the 

truth on other people, too? t,;?lat better witness could 
. . 

you have than an aczomplice to these defendants w h o  
. . 

was there at the  t i m e  t h a t  the crimes were committed? 

. And he to ld  h i s  part  iq it and their part and pleaded 

g u i l t y  to h i s  charge? !?hat better witnes s  could you 

. have than t h a t ?  Y e t  they g e t  up here and t x y  to tell  
. . 

. . you Allen Hall is txying to beat t h e  rap. Man, it's 

too late fox him to beat the rap. Ifo is got 12 years. 

There is nothing hc can do about i t  now. They are up 

I here tellinq you he is'trying to heat tile rap. You 

couldn't have a bctter  w i t n e s s .  ITe is an accomplice 



, who saw it, who participated, who pled  guilty and ~gho 

has already received h i s  sentence. . * - . - - - -  
What does he have to g a i n  in coning in here and .. - 

. . 
testifying? nothing. Y e t  the defense would t e l l  YOU 

if he hadn't been sentenced, if he had come in here 

and had not  been sentenced on his burning of :dike's 

case and his assault on emergency personnel case, they 

would t e l l  you that the State was making a deal with 

him. He hadn't even been sentenced yet. And so the 

S t a t e  -. is making a deal on his testimony. Yet they come 

. . right back after the  an's been sentenced and t e l l  you 

the sane thing.  The State has made a deal  w i t h  hh. 

He's alrsacly gotten his 12 years. He has nothing to --. _ -. .- 
gain. There is no reason for him to get up here and lie ' - - & - -  

to you or anybody ^ I S ~ .  

..I. _ I ._ Secondly, what better witness could you have 

than a pkrson v,ho was present in the surrounding v i c i n i t y  

of the crime but who was not charged w i t h  any crine - - 

. arising out of that incident? Eric Junious, Jerome F l i t -  ___--. . 
*c- - 

chcll. What better w i t n e s s  could you hav2 than one 
a -  - 

I *- 
< - 

who was there and vrho wasn't charged? They have nothing 

to gain by conitrg up here to t e s t i fy .  They haven't 

been charged w i t h  anything. On the one haJn you have 

got  a guy who has been chargad; who is already received 

hie  sentence: can't heat the rap anymore. And, on the 



- ' .  
, . 

other !1an3, you . have . ' got a guy , t w o  young men, w30 wercn' t - 
- - .  

charged i n a n y  of t h i s ,  have nothing to gain: and that, 
. . 

I submit, nakcs t11en a believable witness along w i t h  the 

standards t h a t  you , . apply in everyclay l i f e  t o  the  aanner 

in which they t e s t i f y ,  to the manner in which they re- 

sponded in cross exaninat ion.  They can't shake the 

testifiony natcrially of either of these three witnesses 

on cross examination. That  shows t h e i r  c r e d i b i l i t y .  

That shor?s their believability. 
I .  

Then the defense comes up here znd says the 

, State is try ing  everything that occurred t3e whole weekend 

d o m  there. Well if that  were true the State v?ould be 

here u n t i l  next year trying tile weekenils. 
8 - -  

They are up here telling you t h a t  the evidence 

t h a t  you have heercl in this courtroo3 about the assault 

at 5th and Xun t r y i n g  to b u m  that nan's house, trying 

to shoot police officers and killing then up here and 

wounding police officers, that that and shooting at 

houses on Dock Street and shooting at cars going dobin 

6th and 7 t h  t h a t  t ha t  has nothing to Bo wit11 burning 

M i X e l s  and has nothing to do with the consBiracy to 
- .  

assault encrgency pcrsonnel. 

But it does. It is relevant .  One of t?ln Ju2gees 

functions here in this court is to detcrninc what cvidcnce 

is conpotent and what is not. And if it is not con~ctent  



you don' t  hear it. And the Judge ruled t h a t  every b i t  
, . 

of t ! ~ a t  evidence you heard was relevant evid2nce an3 that 

it was competent because you heard it. And yet they came 

up here and say that it has nothing to  do with it. 

h%at does it show? Vhat does t h e  assault up 

here on 5th and Elun show on a police officer? mat shovrs 

tha t  if they can shoot police officers on 5th Street, 

they can shoot then and conspire to shoot at them over 

here. d 

What does shooting in cars have to do w i t ?  it, 

w i t h  t?leir going on shooting in cars a t  piblice o f f i c e r s ?  

What does shooting at firemen have to do w i t h  it? They. 

are going to shoot at firemen and police officers, par- 

ticularly those they know as " P i q s " .  A 1 1  of it is rele- 

vant to show t h e i r  . . state of minds, their c i in ina l  in- 

t en t ions .  All of it is relevant to that p o i n t ,  the 

c r i m i n a l  mind: and that is p a r t  of what the S t a t e  has to 

prove to you in order for you to return a guilty verdict.  

They get up here and accuse ne of solicitorial 

orchsstration and then  they come up and t a l k  to you 

ahout f i n g e r p r i n t s .  A desperate move. They d o n ' t  have 

anytlling else to argue. Mr. Frrguson g e t s  up here and 

says, "Ilnve you seen one f i n g e r p r i n t ?  Have you heard 

ahout one fingerprint?" 

c -<% ,.> Well, f o l k s ,  you don't ta?:e fingerprints like 



you see then in the movies and en television. It j u s t  

doesn't happen that  way. This isn't Perry Mason and 

Hani l ton Berger. This is the real thing. 

And l e t  me expla in  something about fingerprints 

to you. You have all seen it to sofie extent on television. 
. . 

They put a dust, a powder, on t5e surface. and t hen  they 

put a piece of tape down on the potder an4 l i f t  it up. 

This is called ' l i f t i n g  a fingerprint". If you pbt yous 

finger on sonething or your thunb that leaves moisture, 
. . . . 

' and you lift it ub and the moisture i n  still there, and 

- ,  then if they are. looking for fingerprints, they come 
. 
along an3 @ut sane porsder on that moisture, an3 the 

powder clings to t5e moisture to make the outline of the 

fingerprints,  and then yov get  a piece of tape and you 

p u t  it Zown on the o u t l i n e  of t h a t  f inqerpr in t  and lift 

. it, and you have l i f t e d  a f i n g e r p r i n t .  

D u t  YOU have got to have ideal cond i t ions  to 

get  a finycrprint. Unlike what you have heard on tole-  - 
vision an8 seen-on television an8 seen a t  t h e  r2~ovies, 

you can't got fingerprints under any circ~~.%tances. you 

havc got to have idcal conditions to got a fingerprint. 

You have got to have a snooth surface. You havc got to 

have the lack of heat  and other elsnlcnts. 

P?m7 let's t a l k  abollt: some of the  i t e m s  that w e  

presente-l in physical evitlence hore. L e t  me assure you 



- - .  

iirst of all that if there had been ident i f iable  f inget-  

' pr ints  on any of t%ke items you would have been the first 

to hear about it. 

t l r .  FErguson gets up hsrc and asks police 
L . 

ofiicer,  " D i d  you sen t?lese things off to the lab?" 
. . 

. . ".. : . 
. You don t have to send something off to the lah to get . . . 

. , 
, . 

. . 

a fingerprint off o i  . ,it. . Any Police Departmnt can . .  . . . 

l i f t  fingerprints. They have got men like Lt. Turner 

to l i f t  f ingerprints .  

Let's t a k e  sone oi the items. take the 

gun shells, the .22 gun shel l s ,  t h a t  were found outside 

an the street  i n  front of the church up near 6th and 

Nun in this area out hehind the parsonage in the d i r t ,  

in the basenent of the church in the d i r t ,  s h e l l s ,  -22 

shells. Well first of all, a -22 she l l  is not big enough 

to g e t  an identifiable fingerprint off of it. You know 
. - 

how big a - 2 2  casing is after it's been fired. It is 

no longer than t h a t ,  and you can ' t  get a f i n g e r p r i n t  off  

of something t h a t  small. 

Let's say it is a larger bullet that's been 
. ., 

fired, a .45.  Once t 5 a t  bullet has gone into a chamber 

of a gun and been fired and ejectcfl, the  chance of your 

getting a fingernrint off of tha t  fired casing is almost 

n i l .  Iflly? -111 right. If you leave noisturc on t h a t  

bullat when yo& it in the c!larfib?ber from your finger 
I ,  
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or your thumb and then that s h e l l  is f i r e d  there is a 

certain heat level once it's fired t h a t  that casing 

is going to get  to* It's going to get hot.  What does 

that 40 to moisture on m e t a l ?  It causes it to evaporate. 

MR. hV:JEVOL: W e  object to this. There has been 
I . .  no evidence - 

. THE COUXT: Objection overruled. 
. . 

SOL. ST2OU3 Continues: An3 then the shell goes 
. . 

into the d i r t .  people walk on it. The dirt soaks Up 
i " , , 

moisture. The sun evaporates moisture.And you want to 

. get a f ingerpr in t  off of it? Again, this isn't Perry 

Mason. Tt's impossible under tllose circumstances. 

Let's take the ammunition boxes. Wily didn't 

we get f i n g e q k i n t s  off of t h e m ?  Cardboard, snooth 

surfaces. Isn't cardboard absorbent? Doesn't it ab- 

sorb moisture? Isn't amnunition boxes i n s i d e  t h e  Temple-  

t o n  house with the heat on i n  the house and w i t h  t h a t  

absorbent cardboard doesn't that do away wit5 finger- 

printslafter a certain period of t i m e  you can't get a 

f ingerpr in t .  . 
. . 

Bow about firebombs that were found down at 

Flike's  an Friday night and then again on Saturday night? 

Two of the firebombs had been burned, broken and burned. 

You know you are not  goinq to get a fingerprint off that. 

They wouldn't even o'low t h a t  on television. 



What about the wine bottle that didn't burst \ 

and didn't burn? If it's full of kerosene and gasoline 

it comes out because t 3o  wick wasn't in there. Nhat is - .  

the gasoline and kerosene going to do? Tt's a cleaning b 

agent. It is going to do aqitay w i t h  f ingerprints .  

Then they cone and as:; you where are the finger- 

prints. Hell now,y~u kno?: v:here they are. They evaporate. 

And then I assure you if there ha-l been any identifiable 
, . 

- fingerprints you'd have been the first one' to find out 
. t 

about it. . . 
' .. 

a . '  . * Then they go 0" to'characterize Jerme Flitchell, .- . ,_ _ - . . . -  , 

the kilier . ~ t .  Aamon says t h a t  Jerome Mitchell  .admitted 
. *  .. . 

r03bing.Y~. , . .  Futch, whom Wr. Hunevol says was previously 
. . . ,  

. a Pender county 'resident. I an sorry 7.W. Putch is dead. 
. . .. 

I helped - .  t h a t  case. I don ' t  see where h i s  
. . ..* 

hoinq a Pender county resident has anyt3ing to do with 

- it. 

- 

Flitch;ll admitted robbing the man a f t e r  hc k i l l e d  

him. Is that what Jerome :'litchell t e s t i f i e d  from t h i s  

witness  stand? Is that what he said? They mislead you 
. . , .  , 

. . , .  . . -  , 
.. ,. : on that . .  - just l i e l r  they did everything else in t h e i r  argu- . - 

<. . . . ! ' .:: . . 

nonts .  You didnl t get 'one th ing straight fro3 t h e m .  

Jerom Flitchell got up here and t e s t i f i ed ,  and you will 
1 

recall I tried to brivg it out at f irst ,  and they ob- 

jetted. Then when they got i n t o  it they gave nc a chance 

to bring it out - tha t  he went i n t o  the store w i t h  Zane 
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Perkins w i t h  a loarled gun to coxnit a robbery; that Mr. 

Rltch w a n t  fir h i s  gun and Zane Perkins  shot and k i l l e d  

hin, Jerome Mitchell never having f i r e d  a shot or pointed 

a gun. That doeen't make h i m  an angel, Lord knows, but 
.. . . . 

i t  6oes xa?e - h i m  a murdcr i r . .  Fe is j u s t  as guilty under 
I - 

A. _ 
the lavr of m'lr,:er as Zane Perkins was, but I wanted you 

to know he vrasn't a killer. If he was a k i l l e r  I would 

have so& doubt about h i s  credibi l i ty ,  but he was not .  . . 

I _ .  Iie admitted h i s  part and t e s t i f i ed  against Zane Perkins 

at personal r i s k  j u s t  like he is doing here. You feel .- 
- < 

l i k e  he .is not believable. ne 1s a believable witness. - - . - . - C  - 

He has nothing to gain by-coming up here to testify.  4 6" .> 

He's got 3 5  years an3 he's not charged w i t h  burnin? !like's 

'or assault on emergency ~ersonnel or conspiracy-to assault 

emergency personnel .  

Then Mr. '~unovol 4 e t s '  up here ada says,  "Well 

J e r o m e  ? 4 i t c h e l l ,  no;+ if they had a P A system in that 

. . . church and if ilr. Ben Chavis was tal!:ing over that P A 

. system, Jerome Mitchell outside could have heard it." 

O f  conrse, t h i s  was Fehruaq, ladies and gentlemen, and 

the windcn~s were clown.  Ile was at the  back of the church 

talking to a fellow in the basement w i t h  a brick wall 

between h i m  and ~i?:oevar was t a l k i n g ,  and he miqht have 

heard some soimd, but he coulcln*t t a l l  who was talking / 

. . 
and vrhat they were . saying. Ile s a i d  sure they could have 



heard it if it was on a P A systen. - I i i s  own client 

tells you that when she was at the church on Thursday 

. . 
night there were people ta lk ing  on P A system. She didn't 

hear half they sa id ,  and they w e r e  ins ide  the c!~utch. 
. . ," . . Does that nake sense as an argument: to you? 

Then t ! e y  ask you t h i s  futile question.. Again, 

a desperate move. "Where were you on February 6, 19711 

Where were you on February 6 ,  1971PW Trying to inply 

- .. hovu.could thesc witnesses renenher where they were 
., 

February 6, 1971.. Well believe me, folks, if you were I 

I _  . . 
(C -r. - 

out firebombing !like's Grocery orfan2 shooting at police ' . 
. . 

. - ! .  

officers and getting s!~ot  back at and running and hiding 

and screaming and yelling, you'd remember February 6th. 

'And if you vere a firanan or police officer out  t5ere 

trying to put out that fire and you were shot at for over 

3 hours, you'd remember February 6, 1971. You'd have a 

reference p o i n t  j u s t  like everyone of these witnesses 

did if you were going dovm the street and at 6th and 

Nun you w e r e  shot at and you went in the shop. You would 

. . 
- ,  remember February 6, 1971, j u s t  as clear as a 5ell. ' 

You'd never forget it. 

And if you trerc Firs. Jackson and Mrs. NcKeithan 

and your house hurned to the ground for  no reason, don't 

you th ink  you'd rcmerbcx February 6 ,  19717 You are r. doggone tooting you would. you'd remelnber it fbr the 



rest of your l i f e .  

Then, as he d i d  a l l  through the t r i a l ,  Mr. 

Fergueon cones up hcze and objects to these parade of 

photoqra?hs. All the State is doing is just parading 

~hotoqraphs throug$ bore. The State d i d  that and a lot  
& 

more. iJow why does Nr. FErgueon object to all those 

photc graphs? Because he know, j u s t  like you, . that this 

is going to help put YOU in a better position of what 

really bappcned out there that Friday and S A t u r d a y  night .  

And he knows,just l i k e  you, that photographs don't l ie: 

t .  and he knows. j u s t  l i k e  you, that photographs, one photo- 
., . . 

Ck -* 

graph is better +hag a thousand words. Like these two 

photographs. :low you t e l l  ne that is not better than 

a thousand words. You tell me t h a t  is a lie. They 
. + -- can't t e l l  me. Who docs that oh~*$? This is taken on 

February 11, 1971, at Steve Corbettts funera l  on the 

Thnnsday afta;  14ikct s was burned on Saturday n igh t ,  

on the Thursday af te r  Al l en  l!all net and ta lked r r i th  

Chavis on Friday niqh t  before Mil:ets was burned. 

An8 !h. Decton comes up here and says Den Chavis . ' .  
makes a lieutenant out of Allen lIa11; only known him 

2 days, but what does that picture t e l l  you?   his is at 

the head of a funeral procession with approximately 3 

or 4 hundred people in it; and who is at the head? Ben 

Chavis. An3 who is right behind h i m ?  Allen Hall. And 



'.. - 
1 . .  . 

they say he is not a believable witness. That is the  

best evidence you have got of hi; believability. He was 

I Ie  knows what happened. If you can't believe 

him, you can't believe anybody. What about that photo- 
I 

I . graph? Doesn't that tell a thousand words? Isnt t that 

better than a thousand words? Isn't t h a t  the truth? . .. 
You have got a march on C i t y  Iiall t h a t  Friday 

afternoon before Wikels  burned on Saturday with all those 

kids and with Ben Chavis walking back and for th  on C i t y  
I 

. .  Hall. And who do you have down there giving the  po~fer 

sign? Who is it? E r i c  Junious. R i g h t  there. That puts  

.them together and this puts them together. If you can e;- . .  
believe he was there w i t h  the defendant Chavis, cani t 

you believe he was there t h a t  Saturday n i q h t  and saw 

these other people? If t h a t  doesn't help you to believs 

it notlling will. :*e was there and so was Al len  H a l l  

and both of then have * t o l d  you exactly w h a t  happened. 

h d  that  1s ~ ? k y ,  t h a t  is the objection to the  parade 

o f p h ~ t o g r a ~ h s .  That is why because E ~ e y  can't stand 

: the truth, and there it is r i ~ h t  there .  

NR. HUNNOL: ;Ue object 60 this and ask for 

. .  - instructions. 
. . 

TBE COURT: Objection overruled. 

. . : SOL." STIl9LTD Continues : Then the argument that 

G-. A l l e n  I l a l l  says on Saturday aft'ernoon he and Ann Shepharcl 

, - 



and all of these defendants were going over t o  the old 

Cormunity Eospital and a Community Center over on 11th 

Street and Jerome 3litchell  testifies that he goes by 

Ann Shephard's house at 5 o'clock. Now if you w i l l  

recall, now try to recall back now what was saict on cross 

examination. Allen £la11 said, "Then ve were going through 

t h e ~ e  to go over to the Cornunity Center from the Annex, 

I don' t know what t ine it was. " '  I didnt t ask h i m  what 

time it was, but the  defense asked h i m  and asked h i m  and 
* . - . . 

asked him and asked h i m .  *t7ell could it have been 3 
, r 

.-. . . . 
. . o'clock? Could it have been 4 o'clock? Could it 5ave 

been 4:36?" +And so f i n a l l y  he says, "It could have been 

4:3Q. ft could have been before that  or after that. 

I j u s t  don't knoweH 

And then they get Jerome :.!itchell up t3ere. 
. . . . .  , . 

. . ,  
. - .  . . Said, "IT'nat time were you over at Ann Shephard's apart- 
.. - . . . . 

men t? '' 

And he said, "I don't know. In the afternoon 

after I had been dovrntmn." 

"\;as it 3 o'clock? f4as it 32303 Was it 4 

' o'clock?" 

And f i n a l l y  when they g e t . t o  5 o'clock, he says, 

I* Yes, s ir ;  it was possibly 5 o'clock, X j u s t  don't know." 

And .then they come up here and say, "i-Jell 

Allen Hall says he was there at 4 : 3 0  and then Jeroma 



Mitchell 
. . 

says he was over at her apartment at 5 o'clock.? 

- That is not the way the testimony w e n t .  That is no t  the 

way it cPVe out. - 
And then they came up here and tell you why 

Cornnuni ty Center they went s tra iqht  back to the church. 

How could Ann Shephard be in her apartment and be at the 

church? Allen nall didn't say that. Allen Hall testifiecl 

t h a t  when they left the old Comunity Eospital t5ey 

went back to t h e  Comunity Center: t h a t  from there they 

split up to return to the church and'that was that after- 

.noon and sonetime later after he had messed around he 

went back to the - , c\urch -: about 7 o'clock. Re doesn't 
. f., 

know what happened to other defendants or where t%ey 

went to. 
. , 

They could have gone horns. Maybe she was home 

t h a t  Sbh~xday afternoon. 

She said 

says she was. 

she was. But does that mean she t ~ a s n ' t  . . 
t h a t  ~ ~ t u r d a ~  night? Because Motor f.!ouse said she was 

and no question ~13out it. If she wasn't there SAturdw 

. * n i g h t ,  f was. . - 
e ,  

. , *  

MR. IIUIYBVOL: Object to that, your Honor. 
. 

TFa COUXT: Sir? 

XR. TIUl7IYOL: Object to tho Solicitor saying he 

was there Saturday night .  

TIE COURT: Objection sustained a s  to the Solici- 

tor's remark he was there Saturday night. 



.. 
- 

. .. - SOL. STROVD Continuas: Aqain, see the represen- 

ta t ion  you get? I didn't say I was there. I said if she 

wasn't, 1.was. .- 

MR. IlIFJEVOL: Your ?Ionor, I object to that. 

-: TZE COURT: Objection sustained. 
. .. . 
a -  SOL. STROUD: i*. Aunevol gets up here and te l ls  

you that Am shophard was not charged in this case until 
- 

August of this yeas, knowing that that was:lat true. 

MR. HLVEVOL: Y o u r  Eonor, 1 object and ask for 

instructions, 
i 

THE COLEtT: Ohjection overruled. 

3 SOL. STXOUD Continues : I have here in my hand 
* 

two bills of indictment  against Ann Shepliard. 

WR. HU'LEVOL: Ohjection. 

THE COURT : Overruled. 

SOL. STROUD Continues: May 22, 1972, the same 

these other rlcfendants were charged before ti12 G r a d  

Jury. 

?.SR. JIUI.J?VOL : 03 j ec tion. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 
. . 

. . 
SOL. STRODD ~ o n t i n n e s :  One of these bills of 

.. . 
' inclictiiont charges h e r  w i t h  conspiring to burn a bnilding 

with incendiary device, 3lika's Grocery Store. 

. TTX COLEIT: Just a ninute. You gentlemen cone 
. ., . . . . 



.. . -+ up here a minute. 

(Conference at the bench. ) 

WE COURT: Objection sustained. Members of the  

jury, you w i l l  not consider any referenct to 
I .  

indictment. 

SOL. STROUD: The point is she was c3arge3 and 
. . 

arrested before August, and he knew it. 

FERGUSW?: Objection. 
. -. 

I MR. HUNEVOL: Objection: ask for i n s t r u c t i o n s  

and r e q u e s t  a mistrial. 

THE COURT: Overruled. &Ie~bers of the jur:, 
. . 

9. would you step to your room, please?( !,@,@&, A d  a 

. . . . 
(The jury retires from the courtroom.) 

THE COURT: PIow, Yr. Ilunevol, 5 understand t ha t  

- . thn solicitor is iimply anstrering your at-- 

. The Sol i c i to r  did not  interfere w i t h  

your address the whole four and a half hours 

of it, and I don't renernbber a single tine that - 

he objected to anytl~ing. How, of course, W .  

. . .. ,. ' . . Solicitor, you cannot insert anytiling into the . . 

evidence tha t  is not in evidence. But you can 

answer h i s  argument and t h a t  is w l ~ a t  I under- 

stand he i n  doing, !+. Hune~01. 

tm. IiUIJEVOL: Your lionqr , I understand q ; ~ h ~ t  he 

is doing is  he i s  introducing eviclence before 



this jury that is highly preju(Iicia1 to charges 
L .  

which he, representing the State ,  no1 prossed 

. . * before t h s  start of this trial. 

THC COURT: But you said she had not been arrested 

b prior to whatever date that  was, didn't you? 

And he is simply saying she had been arrested 

prior to August. ( @ ,  hb 
MR. HWEV9L: Your Honor, the only thing 3: did 

I too3 a bill of indictment when she was on 
. . 

direct examination. I handed her the bill of 
. , 

. - indictnent. I asked her when she was charged 

-by the Granci Jury w i t h  the offense of accessory 
d 

before the fact  of burning Elike's. The only 
1 

r 

t i m e -  I referred to t h a t  I specifically addressed 

it to the charge of accessory before the  fac t .  

SOL, STRODD: That is not my recollection, your 

Honor. Xy .recoLLection, you Ilonor, is he said 
. .  . .  

..she' had hat  bee11 charged or arrested before 
. - 

. ' ~ u ~ u s t .  -1low can it be prcljudicial to her? 

The State no1 pxossed the two cases? 

TFIE COURT: The only th ing  the i n j e c t i a n  i n t o  t h s  

evidence a bill of indictment t h a t  is n o t  in 

evidence. T I I ~ ~  is M r a t  ha is o?>jncting to.(EICt,dAd"* I 
I 

SOL. STROUD: I wc>n9t say anything f u r t h e r  to I 
them ahout it. 



. ,flit3 COURT; L e t  the juq? come back. 
. . 

. ' '  (The' jury r=turncd to the courtroom. ) 

THE cmm: your mition for niatrial is a c n i e a . & e  d -  
t .  

MR. FERGUSON: Your Ronor, I'll join tha t  m o t i o n .  

.THE C 0 L . T ;  Your motion for mistrial is denied. 

>. - .  T E E  COURT: members of the jury, you will not 

consider ths Solicitorts statement as to a 

bill .of in .? ictnant  upon ~ A i c h  the defendant 

Shephard was arrested. You will disabuse your 

minds of that reference and net consider it for 
. . 

. any purpose- !.- 

SOL. STROUU Continues : Now let's get back to 

the  defense  of Ann Shephard very brief ly,  and I will nova 

on. : You will recall first of a l l  Benjanin Vonce taking 

the witness stand.  ~cnjamin lYonce g e t a u p  here, says 

he knows all the defendants.  Ee w e n t  to school w i t h  a l l  

of then. lie was at t h e  church Fehruary 2 through the 7; 

t W t  on Saturday night the only clefendant he saw was 

Connie Tyndall and t h a t  was af ter  12 or 1 o'clock and then 

I asked h i n  a couple of more questions.  An3 then I . 
said, 'VJell d id  you see the defendant C i~av i s  there?" 

n Y e ~ , - h e  waa there, 0 

."Didn't you say just a minute ago t h a t  Connie 

Tyndall was the only defendant t 5 a t  was at the church?' 
, 

I t  . IIe s a i d ,  "ire11 I must have beon mis t aken -  

- " 

* .  

. " 



Q&11 he was, hut he said none of the other 
- . . 

defendants w e r e  there. * 

Then he was cross examined ahout Friday night, 

i "Were there any defendants there Friday night?" 
i 

"No, sir: none of the defendants w e r e  there 
L. 

PRiday night." Ann Shephard admitted being there Friday. 
. . 

tlow then  ?W. lIunevol gets up here and in h i s  

summation says essent ia l ly  the same thing i an going to 

,. - . say, that Benjamfn Wonce was not a good w i t n e s s .  From 
). . . 

- what he said he didn't see anything and didn't know any- 

thing. M r .  Iiunevolts own words. I 

. * Then Iluneval asked you if you fee l  that he . -  

. . was ly ing;  and, of course, obviously he was ly ing.  I 

a . think it was obvious to eveqhody in the courtroon, even 

Mr. Aunevol who put h i n  up there. "If you feel  that he 
. . 

. . 
, . . was lying,  clonlt hold it against.  my client, Ann Shephard, 

Hold it against Benjarnin f-lonce," So you are t a l k i n g  out 

of both sides of your mouth. On one side you are saying, 

"Here is Benjamin Wonce. He is believable witness. Listen 

to his testimony and believe it.'!. And on the other hand 
- .  . . . .  

and out of the other s i d e  of his mouth, "But if you clantt , 
I 

believe it, don't hold it against my client, Ann ~hephard." I 

Wants his cake and wants to e a t  it, too. It j u s t  doesn't 
f 1 

work that way. It t s  got  to bc qne way or the ot!~er. j 

Now Pir. Taylor - we all remember 14r.  Taylor - 



about the Liberation Club. Mr. Ruenvol gets up here and 

says the man would say anything anybody wanted him to. 

And he did. And yet he tries to t e l l  you t 5 a t  the man 

got the chronology right.  Well if he is confused on part 

of it, cohldn't he be confused on a l l  of it, and most 
, 
I l i k e l y  he is? 

Wen on cross examination by the defense attorneys 
. .  

who put him up there, he came out and saiE that the 

furniture store had moved out the f irst  of February, 
p - : .  

: (<.  
' -  

And t hen  later sa id ,  no, it was there af ter  February. 

And then herd say one thing to me - I finally got it . . 
-- 

" - . .. 
d... . -  

straight again or a t . l e a s t  I thought I got it straight.  . . 

a 

But I am not sure & what the man knows and you are not 

. -  either. And y e t  he i s  a believable witness? I am not 
, ,* 

saying hob is' going to g o t  up there and lie. Re jus t  
. - . .. 

doesn't know whathe is talking about. 

And *then lk'. EIunevol says, "If Ann Shephnrd was -. 

a perjuror she vlouldn't admit to having f irebods made 

in her n&rtment." Well you will reca l l  that  on cross 
. . 

.. ' .  
. . . . . .  . . . examination 1 was  holding s0P.e statemants in my hand 
. . . .  . 
, '  ' (. .. . .- . . . , . . . . . . .  

. . 'and I asked her i$ t h e  knew Michael Peterson, and I asked 

her if she knew Cornel Flowers, and she said, 'Yes. II 

And 1 asked her if they weren't in her apartment on 

February 9 ,  1971, and she said, "Yes." And then I asked 

her, "Didn't you make firebombs at your apartrrent?" 



/ - .  

and she said, mYes. "  he reason she said yes and answer& 
, 

that question t ruthfu l ly  was because she knew I had the 

statement. She's known it a l l  along. That i s  why she 

answered that question trut5fully. She knew I had the 

statement, but she didn't know we had ~ R i c  Junious, and 

t h a t  is why she l i e d  about Saturday night because she .- , . " 

didn't think she was gohng to g e t  caught. T3ought the 

S t a t e  had put up everything i t  had. E r i c  Junious put 

her there on Saturday night. She bandaged h i s  finger 

*after he smashed ft in the door. She ta.>k h i m  to R e v .  

. . Templeton's house so they coudl work on h i s  f inger .  
! ,  

Then he was sent  to  the hospital fo r  Xray. So when 

she knows you have got  the witnesses  she t e l l  t h e  trtlth. 

>%en she thinks YOU don1 t, she lies. 

That is basically it as to the  coments t h a t  I 

w i s h  to ?sake or wanted to amek to t3e sur)mations of the 

' defense attorneys. 

I4ol.i l e t  me very b r i e f l y ,  folks, al;E if you will . - _ ( ,  . . . 
, . .  

bear &i th  F l e r  I want to 40 throug!~ the State's evidence 

and try to tie it together for you. I think I can 

probably get through faster, g o t  through it faster than 

I think 1 can now. 
, , 

. . Now let's try to keep things in order. ~et's 

start w i t h  Friday night. Fri6ay n igh t  Allen !;all says 

hct goes to Gregory~Co~grcqational Church about 5 o'clock, 



sees Ann Shephard, Fhrvin Patrick and others standing 

on the outside. Ile goes over to R e v .  Tenpleton's house 

anci asks for Chavis. 210, he goes over to Rev. Temple- 

ton's house and Chavis is talking on t3e phone or get t ing  

ready to t a lk  on the phone and Rall says he will be 

back in a minute. Re goes down the street a minute, comes 

back and he asks for Chavis. This is in Eev. Temple- 

ton's house. Ifiilc in Rev. Templeton's house he sees 
I -  

tho w d i c a l  sunplies on the table. Wonce admitted in . , 
. - 

C A P S he sees a Tupomare of plas t i c  ccntainer of 

*amunition on the table. lie ' talks  to Chavis, h i s  nane, , 
7 

PT 
E & % + & .  .how old. he is, &at .he does and Chavis says, "Let's go 

upstairs. So they go upstairs i n to  the beitroom that - 

Chavis was using during the stay at the Tenpletonls. 

Upstairs he observed James Earl Grant in the front room 

w i t h  a rifle ~11th a scope on it sitting at the windows 

facing ?Ion Street, either a guard or a sniper OK some- 

thing. Rut he is therc. And Chavis and l I a l l  started - 

talking. They s t a r t  talking about the black people 

in lilnington and the white people. And Chavin t a l k s  - .  . . . . ,  . - , . 
adout a black g ir l  s t d e n t  who was beat up by a white 

boy, but he wasn't arrested. And that black man couldn't 

(Jet justice in klilmington: that he, Chavis, bias going 

to do all he coulr3 for  t ? ~ e  black people in Xilnington 



- t h e  crackers that  they c0;lldn.t run over the black 

people. 

. Chavis goes on to te l l  hia that this would be . 

a tine for revolution; tha t  ~ \ e  crackers would have to 

come to 5eg and goes on to explain the Chicago Strategy 

to him. This is a straten w3erc you s e t  a building on 

fire and when police officers and firemen come there to 

attend the building you are in anbush, you are in position 

.. with the treapons to shoot at them, t r y  to keep them 
. - 

in their cars, try t6"kfll thin. 

l lall  . . and ~ h a v i s  . . go back downstairs. 

'to Ann ~he~hard;  Marvin Patr ick ,  Connie Tyndall and 

some others. Chavis starts talking about needing money 

to make fir5bbonba to last for a week. Bohn Robinson, 

Johnny ~ o b i n s o n ,  comes in and says, ttr;3ell, we need some 

money to buy anmonition w i t h ,  too." And so Chavis starts 
. , 

collecting the money. lie gets money from Ann Shephard, 
I .  

A l l e n  Hall and some others. They t'lcn go outside of 

Rev. Templeton's house, and out there Chavis gives in- 

structions to a groupof people that are there concerning 

how to approach and how to leave the area of the churcl~. 

to always use  the passv?ord, ''~abbit" and who will ever 

forget E r i c  Junious coning up here and t e s t i fy ing ,  saying 

that a f t e r  he saw RikeWs burning and af te r  he heard. the 

gunfire coming hack from the hospital that he ran all the 



wby to the church saying, 'Ra5bit, rabbit, rabbit, 

rahbit"; that Chavia says t h a t  if cars come in to  the 

area if-you coma ihto'thc area in a car, roll your 

window anr? 'say, Ra>!.)it.' If cars come in with lights 

on and don't. ha l t  and' rlontt h a l t  when they are demanded 
. - to hald,' then shoot them. ~. . 

I. 

Then at this point Chavis sends George Kirby 
i 

and Marvin Patrick to two stores downto~qn, a pawn shop 

and gun shop to brsak in and use ammunition, gun powder 
I 

. . or anything else they can get; that a t  this time ChavFs, 

tlall, Robinson, Janes Earl Grant and a 5th fell014 Hall 

. couldn't i d e n t i f y  gets  i n t o  this white van and he des- c? - 
' crihes the van. IIc says it' is a van w i t h  s i d e  doors 

on it, back doors, j u s t  a f r o n t  seat, cargo area in the 

back with chairs in it, tape Pick, curtains around the 

windovvs; and he identified the v?indorr, says t? l z t  is t3e 

van. 

Later Mr. ?lerton 'z3eiss comes in, employer of 

John Robinson, and ident i f i e s  the van and says, yes, 

that is the van John nobinson was using during t h i s  

period of time. They all get  into thc van go o u t  OleanCer 

Drive. On tile way out there Chavis is telling Robinson 

to get - 2 2  ammunition, shotgun sllells and to try to get  

the anrnunition ~rit!lout registaring for  it. If you have 

to register for it not to get  it. . .  I 
. Thc get out at ~ i e l d s .  Tlall and Robinson get O U ~ .  



Chavis give Robinson t?le money to huy the amunition. 

Chnvis and Grant  and t h e  5th f e l l o ~ i  stay in the van, 

They go in, Hall and~Robinson, buy the amunition,  come 

out, Chavis is drivihg, gets the ran heading to go. 

They leave and go to a service station, buy some gaso- 

l i n e  in a container, 5 gallon Army type gasoline container: 

take it back to t3e churbh for fisebonbs. 

To corroborate L l i s  we had Sarg. Bloomer 7.430 had 

previously testified that on Thursday, t h a t  Thursday 

night, before the Friday night that they are talking about 

now that he was on surveillance with Det. Brown and D e t .  

.. IIerring up here around 8th Street up near the ball park, 

8th and Nun, And while they w e r e  there that Thursday 

night they saw a white van drive up here beside t h e  

side door of the church which is xlght here and look 
. . 

; and unload th ings  from t h a t  van. And that on t h a t  same 

night 3 or 4 young blacks c o m e  out of the church, come 
' , 

over here and shoot out the lights, coxe dovm and aim 

the guns where they w e r e  and go back to t h e  churcl~. You 

, have got  the corroboration of the van being at the church. 

Now M r .  Merton Wciss comes in here to t e s t i f y  

for the State and he says that John Robinson workcd for 

hin at the Chinchilla farm in Vilmington;  t h a t  he corked 

Par him from ?lovcml~cr of ' 70  to March of '71; t h a t  5e 

had put  a tape deck in the van; that <he photographs 


